
MINUTES
SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TAXATION COMMITTEE

DATE: Wednesday, February 19, 2025
TIME: 3:00 P.M.
PLACE: Room WW53
MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Chairman Ricks, Vice Chairman Adams, Senators Grow, Anthon, Bernt, Den
Hartog, Toews, Rabe, and Taylor

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

None

NOTE: The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

CONVENED: Vice Chairman Adams convened the meeting of the Senate Local Government
and Taxation Committee (Committee) at 3:05 p.m.

H 231 Food Tax Credits and Refunds - Amends existing law to increase the food
tax credit and to provide an alternative tax credit for the actual amount paid
by taxpayers on food purchases. Senator Nichols introduced H 231. This bill
increased the grocery tax credit to $155 and was expected to provide $50 million
in tax relief. Non-residents would not receive the tax credit and would contribute
toward grocery tax revenue.
Representative Monks argued that sales tax was the fairest tax because it was
a consumption tax. Wiith six percent inflation over the last three years, it was
appropriate to increase the grocery tax credit from $120 per person to $155 per
person. According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, a family of four earned about
$107,000 per year and spent about $6,000 on groceries of which about $360 was
for grocery taxes. Under this bill, an average family of four received $450 in grocery
tax credits. There was an option to submit receipts for food permitted under the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) and receive a tax credit of
up to $250 per person.

DISCUSSION: Senator Toews noted that the bill required scanned copies of receipts and asked
whether documents from a grocery store club that tracked purchases satisfied that
requirement. Representative Monks stated that it would.
Senator Taylor asked whether the receipt would have to be scanned.
Representative Monks replied that it could be sent as a PDF from a phone or any
other electronic means.
Senator Rabe asked Representative Monks to discuss revenue projections and
how this bill interplayed with other tax bills being considered. Representative
Monks stated that Idaho had $6 billion that the Legislature could spend in any way
they chose. This bill gave $50 million back to the people.

PASSED THE
GAVEL:

Vice Chairman Adams passed the gavel back to Chairman Ricks.

TESTIMONY: Onail Isho spoke against H 231. He commented that submitting receipts in order
to obtain the full tax credit was burdensome and that the grocery sales tax should
be repealed.
Mark Johnson spoke in favor of H 231, but stated that he didn't trust the
government to define what food was eligible for the tax credit.



Ron Nate, President of the Idaho Freedom Foundation (IFF), testified on H 231.
The IFF was neutral on the bill. They favored returning money to taxpayers, but
felt the requirement to submit receipts in order to obtain the full tax relief was
burdensome. Mr. Nate contended that taxpayers had paid $1.6 billion in grocery
taxes in the last five years, but received only $823 million in tax credits. He
recommended sending H 231 to the 14th Order for possible amendment to repeal
the grocery sales tax.

DISCUSSION: Chairman Ricks noted that Mr. Nate had attempted to bring forth legislation
numerous times and failed. He asked what chance he thought there was of getting
a grocery tax repealed if they sent H 231 to the 14th Order for possible amendment.
Mr. Nate said that he thought it would pass.
Senator Den Hartog asked how Mr. Nate arrived at the figures for the amount of
grocery taxes paid and the amount of tax credits received. Mr. Nate responded that
the Idaho State Tax Commission did not extrapolate the amount of sale taxes that
were attributed to groceries, however Utah did. Utah attributed 11.75 percent of
sales taxes to groceries.

TESTIMONY: Miguel Legarreta, President of the Associated Taxpayers of America, testified in
favor of H 231. He argued that the proposed increase in grocery sales tax credit
should offset taxes paid due to increased inflation. He estimated that an average
family of four would pay $5,800 in state income taxes with a credit of $620.

DISCUSSION: Senator Anthon asked whether he correctly understood Mr. Legarreta to say that
the tax credit an average family of four received under this bill covered 100 percent
of grocery sales taxes paid by them and that, in addition, the amount of income
taxes they paid would also go down. Mr. Legarreta affirmed that was correct.
Senator Rabe asked whether Mr. Legarreta thought Idaho could afford the various
tax cuts that had been proposed. Mr. Legarreta responded that it was a very
complicated question, but that he thought this approach to the grocery sales tax
was reasonable.
Chairman Ricks asked whether, if the Legislature repealed the grocery sales
tax, taxpayers would see a difference when they paid their taxes. He also asked
whether the proposed tax credit amounted to what someone paid in grocery sales
taxes. Mr. Legarreta responded that the expectations of taxpayers as to the
amount of grocery sales tax credit they would receive may not be met. He further
responded that the amount of tax credit proposed should cover the average amount
of grocery taxes paid.

TESTIMONY: Representative Monks clarified that a taxpayer could submit receipts for food
purchases by any electronic means or by submitting paper copies. He argued
that repealing the grocery sales tax would result in an increase in other taxes and
that a tax credit was fair.

MOTION: Vice Chairman Adams moved to send H 231 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Rabe seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Senator Rabe commented that she supported grocery and property tax relief, but
was concerned about Idaho's revenue projections. However, she did support H 231.
Chairman Ricks stated that he supported H 231 and felt that the tax credit would
help offset rising costs.

VOTE: The motion carried by voice vote.
INTRODUCTION: Senate Page Alia Ferreira. Ms. Ferreira shared that she was a Senior at Nampa

High School. She enjoyed reading and spending time with her friends.

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TAXATION COMMITTEE
Wednesday, February 19, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



ADJOURNED: With no further business at this time, Chairman Ricks adjourned the meeting
of the Committee at 4:00 p.m.

___________________________ ___________________________
Senator Ricks Meg Lawless
Chair Secretary

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TAXATION COMMITTEE
Wednesday, February 19, 2025—Minutes—Page 3


